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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMEN1’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PREPERATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that fairly present the
financial position of the National Export-Tmport Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest” (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group") as of 31 December 2016, and results of its activity, cash flows and
changes in equity for the year ended at the date in accardance with Intetnational Financial Reporting Stundards
("IFRS"),

In preparing the consolidated tinancial statements, management is responsible for:

’ Ensuting the right choice and application of accounting policies;

. Presentation of information, including accounting policy data, in a form that ensures the relevance,
sehability, comparability and comprehensibility of such information;

. Disclosure of additional information in cases where compliance with the requirements of IFRS proves

insufficient for users to understand the impact that certain transactions, as well as other events or
conditions, have on the consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance of the
Group; and

. Assessment of the Group's ability to continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

. Development, implementation and operation of an effective and reliable system of internal control in
the Group;
. Keeping records in a form that allows 1o diselose and explain the transactions of the Group, and to

provide information of sufficient accuracy as of any date on the consolidated financial position of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated {inancial statements comply with the requirements of IFRS;

. Accounting in accordance with the lepislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan and the United Kingdom;
. Taking all reasonably possible measures to ensure the safety of the Group's assets; and
. Identification and prevention of financial and other abuse.

These consolidated financial statetuents Lor the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved by the Group's
management on 15 August 2017.

On behalf of the Managen
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Allanazarov D. Javliev A, L. "’f
Chief Accountant

Financial directo:

15 August 2017 L

15 August 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

Tashkent, Uzbekistan
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the National Export-Import Insurance
Company "Uzbekinvest" (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group™"), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2016 and the related consolidated statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Group as of 31 December 2016, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for expressing an opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with the Tnterational Standards on Auditing (TSA). Our responsibilities
in accordance with these standards are described further in the section "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the consohdated financial statements” of our opinion. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
ethical requirements appheable to our audit of consolidated financial statements in the Republic of Uzbekistan,
and we have fuifilled other ethical ohligations in accordance with these requirements, We helieve that the andit
evidence we luve oblaited is sulliclent aud appropriate o provide a basis fur our opiiiois

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
‘of the consolidated financial statements. Key audit matters are selected from the matters were addressed in the
cor.lt'e_xt: of our audit of the consolidated financtal statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide separate opinion on these mattets. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter 1s provided in that context. '

We have tultilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibibities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in the relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of the procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures petformed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated fin
statements.




- Valuation .c_)f technical balances

The Company’s technical balances, which include the reserve for outstanding claims and reserve for unexpired
risks, reflect the uncertainty inherent in the insurance business on the balance sheet. The estimation of technical
balances is complex as it involves a high degree of judgement. With regards to the reserve for outstanding
claims, the claims department will set up a loss reserve upon notification and after assessing all the information
on the claim which has been provided. The claims information is then aggregated and considered as a whole
to determine the total estimate of the ultimate losses that will be incurred in respect of the insurance policies
underwtitten for each line of business. The modelling for the loss reserves takes into account the claims
- experience, claims development, market conditions, as well as matters that are sensitive to the legal, economic,
- and various other factors and uncertainties, in order to arrive at the estimation of the ultimate losses. The
teserve for unexpired risk is computed based on the premiums booked, nature of the policies, and generally
accepted valuation basis. Management reviews the claims and premiums, the inputs into the models, and they
also engage a certified independent actuary to review the estimation of ultimate losses and reserve for unexpired
risks (o ensure that the technical balances are adequate.

In auditing the technical balances, we performed test of controls, test of details, and analytical review procedures
on the Company’s technical balances. We also compared the actuarial valuation methodologies and assumptions
used by management with industry data, and against recognized actuatial practices. Our procedures included a
review of the assumptions used by the independent qualified certifying actuary and rationale for conclusions
made thereon, an assessment of the consistency of valuation methodologies applied against prior years, and an
asacasment of whether changes made to the actuarial meodels are in line with vur uderstanding of busivess
developments, and our expectations derived from market expetience. In addition, we performed an
independent analysis and re-computation of the technical balances of selected classes of business. Our focus
of the independent analysis and re- computation were over the largest and most uncertain reserves. We also
compared our independent analysis to those performed by the management and obtained explanations of
significant differences noted, if any.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and Lulr presentation ol tese consolidated Guanctal statements
in accordance with I'RS and [or the interal conirol system (hai management considers necessary to prepare
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group to continue to operate continuously, for disclosure, as appropriate, of information relating to
business continuity and for reporting based on the assumption of continuing operations, uniess the
management intends to liquidate the Group, cease its activities or when it lacks any other real alternative, except
for liquidation or discontinuance of activities. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AUDITOR’S FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that contains onr
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing always reveals material misstatement if it exists.
Misstatements may result from fraud or etror and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that
individually or collectively they may atfect the econonuc deustous ol users mude vn the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEWT OF PROFIT AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Notes

December 2016 December 2015
INSURANCE:
Written insurance premiums 5 134 249 529 100 046 432
Reinsurance premiums ceded 5 (52 663 159) (45120 622)
Written premiums, net of reinsurance 81 586 370 54 925 810
Change in provision for unearned premiums, 5 914 183 (1 785 678)
net of reinsurance
Earned insurance premiums, net 82 500 5564 53 140 134
Claims paid, gross 6 {34 181 515) (27 127 120)
Claims on reinsured risks 6 2820414 2831932
Change in provision for insurance losses, 8 (11 981 144) (6 253 616)
net of reinsurance
Net amount of claims incurred (43 342 245) (30 548 804)
Commission income 6 800 689 7 322 540
Acquisition costs (19 277 494) (14 738 842)
Change in deferred acquisition costs 17 3208823 2828 832
Resulis of insurance activity 29 890 327 17 803 960
INVESTMENTS:
Investment income from financial assets at fair 2128 744 634 185
value through profit or loss 7
Interest income from loans and deposits in banks 6497 511 5628 885
Dividend income 3 066 802 6193 945
Income from share of profitin associates (97 983) 51 399
Other (expenses)income from investing acitivities 367 847 122 756
Rasults of investing activity 11 863 021 12631170
OTHER:
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 14 093 205 13 334 077
Administrative and operating expenses 8 (31 658 885) (23 890 236)
Other income 2225623 626 148
Results of other activity (15 380 067) (9930013)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 26 473 280 20 505 117
Income tax expensa 9 (1634 161) (1081 236)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 24 839 119 19 423 881
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 24 820 064 19 327 520
Non-controlling interest 19 0556 96 361
24 839119 18 423 881
On behalf of f
ff./i )fé
o . P
Allanazarov Javliev A, 1. fﬁ ‘
Financial Director Chief Accoufitant

15 August 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

15 August 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 12 - 58 are an integral part of the current financial statements,



NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

NET PROAT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

Exchange differences on franslating foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

On behalf of the Ma

Allaviazatov
Financial Dire

15 August 2017 -
Tashkent, Uzbekistifi

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2016 December 2015
24 839120 19 423 883
21062 869 19 371 103
21 062 969 19 371103
48 902 089 38 784 986
45883033 38698623
18 055 96 361
45 902 089 38794984
J‘J‘/F
S A
P
Javliev A. L. o
Chief Accountant
15 August 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 12 - 58 are an integral part of the current financial statements.



NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

COMESOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Depoesits in banks
Financial assets at fair value
through profitor loss
Investments available for sale
Investments in associates
Reinsurer's share in provision for
unearned premiums
Reinsurer's share in provision for
insurance losses
Loans and receivables
insurance and relnsurance receivable
Property and equipment and Intangible
assels
Deferred acquisition costs
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

insurance and reinsurance payable
Provision for unearned premiums
Provision for insurance losses
Deferred taxiiabilities

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Share capital
Reserve for investment purposes
Special insurance reserve
Translation reserve
Stabilization reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controiling interast
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial Dire

15 August 2017 .-
Tashkent, Uzbekdstal

Notes 31 December 2016

10
11

12
13

20

21

14
16

16

17
18

19
20
21

22

23
23
23
23
23

31 December 2015

7225149 12 344 106
144 095 346 117 924 648
163 222 342 138 868 687

38 563 324 34 125 598
784 432 685223
34 183 732 17 627 240

4522 435 4614 225

1832150 3592 000

3825367 1976 153

16243 588 13480 418
11675934 8467 111

8392017 8 803 903
433 369 816 362 509 322

3019 8448 8950721

50303 427 32421 590
45 372 588 33307 388

2 996 261 2624 414

7196 012 2818011
108 888 135 80120 122

19257 325 19 257 325
15 454 598 16 454 598

4 926 898 4 926 898
160 424 000 139 361 031

3141237 2151 487
119102728 98 211 837
322 306 785 280 363 156

2174 895 2026 044
324 481 680 282 389 200
433 369 816 362 509 322

Chief Accogﬁiﬂ'fant

15 August“ 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 12 - 58 are an integral part of the current financial statements,
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2016 December 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES:
Premiums received 131 804 385 100 110 434
Reinsurance premiums paid (53 987 987) (44 326 359)
Claims paid (35983 774) (27 361 816)
Claims received on reinsured risks 2 996 262 3929 691
Commission revenue received 6832 381 7322 540
Acquisition cost (19277 484) (14 768 177)
Administrative and operating expenses paid (28 392 107) (21838 786)
interest received 6626 254 7 553 483
income tax paid (1262 314) (609 249)
Other revenue received 2 357 556 748 897
Cash flows from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities 27 430 197 10 959 658
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in otheragsete 411 886 (1 467 547)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 4 380 001 186 660
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 32222084 9678 801
CASH FLOWS FROMINVESTING ACTIMTIES;
Net proceeds from/(investmentin) icans and receivabies 1 959 850 (420 983)
Netinvestment in deposits in banks (26 174 658) (6 565 645)
Net investiment in/(proceeds from) financiai assets at fair
value through profitor loss (3 487 8867) 405 971
Purchase of propertyand equipment and intangibie assets (5139 088) (2 936 540)
Purchase of invesiments availabie for sale (4 887 728) (2 635 168)
Proceeds from redemption or sale of investiments available
for sale 250 000 430 192
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 69127 1880 318
Dividend income received 3 066 902 3 605 481
Net cash used in investing activities (34 143 498) (6 236 394)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES:
Dividends paid (3573694) (351 304}
Net cash used in financing activities (3573 694) (351 304)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash

and cas h equivalents 376 151 632428
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5 118 956) 3723531
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 10 12 344 108 B 620 676
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year 10 7225150 12 344 106

Financial Ditect

15 August 2017 _ =
Tashkent, Uzbekistan -~

Javliev A. 1, 2

Chief Acq_e’ﬁntant

15 August 2017
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 12 - 58 ate an integral part of the current financial statements.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The national export-import insurance company "Uzbekinvest” (the "Company") is a legal entity of the Repubtic
of Uzbekistan. It was created by the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers on April 13, 1994 as the National
Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest” and started its activity on June 1, 1994, In accordance with the Decree of
the President of February 18, 1997, the National Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest" was transformed into the
National Export-Importt Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest”, with the increase of the share capital and the
expansion of the volume of operztions. The company provides protection of national exporters of the Republic
of Uzbekistan from political, commercial and business risks and assists in the development of international
martkets. The company provides property insurance, accident insurance, consrruction insurance, life insurance
and other types of insurance. The Company operates in accordance with license No. 00144 dated June 29, 2010
for the implementation of insurance activities issued by the Minsstry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

The eompany is registered at the tollowing address: 2, Abdulla Kodirty Str., Tashkent, the Republic of
Uzbekistan 100077

The Company is owned by the Ministry of Pinance of the Republic of Uzbekistan (herematter referred to as
"MF") and the National Bank for Foreign Econnmic Activity of the Republic of Uzbekistan (hereinafter
referred to as "NBU™), whose shares in the Company's capital are 83.33% and 16.67%, respectively. The parent

cuompany of the Group is the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company had 14 branches (31 December 2015 14) that carry out insutance
activities in the tertitory of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

The Company s the parent company of the insuance group (the "Group"), which consists of the following
entities consolidated in these financial statements:

Share of

participation/votes,

%
Subsidiary Country 2016 2015 Industry
Uzbekinvest International
Insurance Company Limited Grear Britain =~ 100 100 Insurance of political risks
Uzbckinvest Sarmoyalari Uzbekistan 100 100 Investment
Uzbekinvest Hayort Uzbekistan 80 80 Life insurance
Uzbekinvesr Assistance Uzbekistan 100 160 Insurance service agency

Uzbekinvest International Insurance Company Limited ("UIIC") was incorporated in November 1994 in Great
Britain with a share capital of 100,000 thousand US dollags, In December 1995, UIIC received permission from
the UK Departmenr of Trade and Industry to carry out insurance activitdes in the UK and provides iissurance
setvices for International investments in the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan against political risks. In
2009, the shareholders agreed to reduce the total amount of the share capital of UIIC from USD 100,000
thousand to TSP 50,000 thousand. In 2009, both UIIC shareholders, the Uzbekinvest N ational Expart-Import
Insurance Company (80% sh archolder) and American Tnternational Underwriters Overseas Ltd (20%
shareholder), reduced theit investments by 20,000 thousand US dollars each. As a result, the National Export-
Import Tnsurance Company "Uzbekinvest” Lecane the sole ownet of ULLC. In 2010, the National Export-
Impost Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest” reduced its share in the authorized capital of UIIC by 10,000
thousand US dollars, thereby reducing the total amount of the share capital from 60,000 thousand US dollars
to 50,000 thousand US dollars.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {"1FRS"), E '

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
to operate in the foreseeable future. Management and shareholders intend to further develop the Group's
business in the Republic of Uzbekistan and the United Kingdom. Management believes that the assumption
of continuing operations is apphicable to the Group due to a satisfactory capital adequacy ratio.

These consolidated financial statements are presented m thousands of Uzbek Soums ("UZS"), unless otherwise
indicated. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost
principles, except for certain finaacial instruments that are carried at cost at revaluation or fair value at each
reporting date, as explained below.

Historical cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration transferred in exchange
for goods and services.

The fair value reflects the price that would be received upon the sale of the asset or paid when transferting the
obligation under a regular transaction between market participants as of the valuatioa date, whether such price
is directly observable or received by calculation using another valuation technique. In assessing the fair value
of an asset or hability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asser or liability if market
participants consider such characteristics when forming the price of the asset or liability as of the valuation
date. For fair value measurement and / or disclosure with respect o fair value measurement, the fair value in
these consolidated financial statements is determined in this way.

In addition, for the purposes of preparing financial statements, the fair value is classified on the basis of a fair
value hierarchy (Level 1, 2 or 3). The levels correspond to the possibility of direct determinaton of fair value
based on marker data and reflect the significance of the initial data used in estimating the fair value as a whole:

*  The Level 1 inputs are non-quoted adjustments in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group has access to at the time of valuation;

®  The Level 2 inputs are not quotations determined for Level 1, but are observed in the market for an
asset ot liability either directly or indirectly;

* 'l'he Level 3 inpurs are unobservable inputs on the asset or liabilicy.

The Group presents items of the consolidated statement of financial position as 2 whole in the otder of
liquidity. The breakdown of repayment or repayment data within 12 months alter the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position (shott-term) and for mote than 12 months after the date of the consolidated
statement vl Juancial position Jong-term) 15 disclosed in Note 29,

Functional currency

Items included in the Group's consolidated financial statements are measured in the currency of the primaty
economic environment tn which the Group operates ("functional cutrency™). The Group's functional currency
is Uzbek Soum ("UZS"). The currency of presentation of these financial statements of the Group is Uzbek
Soum. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand sums, unless otherwise specified.

Offsetting

The financial asset and financial liability arc offset and the net consolidated amoutrt is reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts recognized in the balance sheet and intends either to offset the net amount or to realize the asset and
fulfill the obligation simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the consolidated income statement,
unless required of permitted by the accounting standard or an appropriate interpretation, with such cases
scparately disclosed in the Group's accounting pulicies,

The main provisions of the acconnting policy are given below.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Recognition of interest income+ and expenses

Interest income on financial assets is recognized if it is probable that the Group will receive economic benefits
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Interest income and expenses are recognized on an
accrual basis and are calculated using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is 2 method
that involves calcularing the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability {or a group of financial
assets / group of ﬁnancnl liabilities), as well as mlmng_, interest income or interest expense to thL rduffmt
period.

The effective interest rate is the discount rate for the expected future cash inflows (including all payments
received or made on the debt instrument rthat are an integral part of the effective interest tare, as well as
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) for an expected petiod until the debt instrument is repaid
or (if applicable) for a shorter period to the book value at the time the debt instroment is accepted for
accounting.

If a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written off (partially written off) as z result of
impairment, interest income is determined taking into account the interest rate used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of calculating impairment losses.

Recognition of dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive dividends is
established (if there is a high prohability that the Group will receive economic benefits and the amount of
income can be reliably determined).

Insurance operations

IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts” defines the accounting policy applied to insurance operations. The development
and assimiladon of this standard includes two stages.

During the first stage, this standard prescribes the requitements for the presentation of insurance contracts in
the financial statements of the insurer until the Internatipnal Accounting Standards Board has completed the
second stage of its project regarding insurance contracts. In particular, at the first stage, an enterprise can
continue to use local accounting policies for insurance transactions in financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS, provided that the principles of adequacy of mnsurance reserves and disclosure of
information estahlished in TFRS are observed.

The second phase of the projece, currenrly inder implementation, should develop a unified international
accounting principles for insurance contracts.

The Group's accounting policies for insurance contracts described below have been determined in accordance
with IFRS of 1st stage — IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, and the Group has decided to continue to use the
statutory accounting policies for insutance transactions in the financial statements prepared in accotdance with
IFRS.

Insurance contract

Insurance contracts are contracts whereby the Group (the insurer) assumes a significant insurance risk from
the policyholder, agreeing to provide compensation to the policyholder in the event that a specified futute
event, the occutrence of which is uncertain (an insurance event), will adversely affect the policyholdet and/or
its financial position. As a general recommendation, the Group determines whether it has a significunt
insurance risk compared to the potential insurance coverage of the amount payable if the insutred event does
not occur.

After the contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract until it expires,
even If the level of insurance risk decreases significantly during this period,
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Description of insurance products
The group offers insurance products that include all general insurance risks. The main business of the Group
is: ' '

. Insurance of transport, including third-party liability insurance;
. Property insurance; '
. Personal accident insutance;
. Insurance of political risks;
. Life insurance, '

Short-term insurance contracts include insurance for transport, property, accident insurance, voluntary medicat
insurance and short-term fife insurance contracts, o S

Short-term insurance contracts

Transpost and property insurance guarantees that the Group's customers are paid compensation for damage
caused to their property, or their financial interests are covered. Customers are also insured against losses
incurred as a result of their inability to use the insuted property in their economic activities as a result of the
occurrence of an insured event (business interruption).

Lizbility insurance contracts protect the Group's customets against the tisk of harm to thitd parties as a result
of their legal activitics. Reimbursable losses include both contractual and non-contractual events. Fypical
protection is designed for employers who are legally responsible for paying compensation to injured employees
or the company (the employer's liability), as well as for individual and business clients who are responsible for
paying compensation to & third party for personal injury ot property darnage (social responsibility).

Personal accident insurance protects the customer from the risk of injury (injuty) or other accidents. Voluntary
health insurance was developed to provide the Group's customers with payment for medical services. These
services are considered ro be insutance only if, at the time of entry into fotce of the agteement, the Group can
not be sure of the probability, timeliness and amount of cash outflows related to this type of insurance.

Insurance of political risks protects the activity of clients and assets of companies-investors or companies
engaged in business activities i the Republic of Usbekistan. The cover provides for investments in
nfrastructure and trade operations, which are insured against political risks in Uzbekistan with respect to
investors and creditors. The investment cover includes confiscation, expropriation and nationalization.
Coverage of rrade operations includes long-term refusals to fulfill obligations and illegal withdrawal ot
guarantees.

Long-term insurance contracts

Long-term life insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms provide for insurance of events related to
a person's life (for example, death or survival) for a long-term period. Premiums are recognized as income
when they are payable by the owner of the contract. Bonuses ate reflected undil the commission is deducted.
Rewards are recorded as expenses as they arise.

Insurance prem iums

Premiums under insurance contracts are accounted for as Issued at the time of the commencement of the
operation of insurance conttacts and relate to income proportionally during the validity of insurance policies.

Unearned ptemium reserve

The unearned premium reserve is created in the amount of the part of the premium issued under the insurance
contract telating to the remaining term of the insurance contract as of the reporting date and is proportionally
calculated by the "pto rata temporis” method.
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2 BASIC PRI NLIPI. ES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuatinmn)

Claims

Claims and related settlement costs are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurted on the basis of an assessment of the liability for the amount of payment to the policyholder or third
patty, less subrogation. Subrogation is the right to demand from a third party a part or the entire amount of a
claim settiement. :

Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs ate commissions, salaties and other direct ensts for attracting insurance, the amount pf which
varies and depends pn the amount of premiums on newly signed and renewed contracte. Acquisition costs are
deferred and amortized pver the period for which the r(_sper.twe premiums will be earned. Deferred acquisition
costs (DAC) are caleulated separately by type of activity and are reviewed in each reporting petiod to verify
their recoverability,

Allowance for lnsses

The Joss teserve is an estimate of the liabilities for future insurance payments and includes a reserve of c}almed
losses (RCL) and a reserve of incurred but not setded losses (RINSL). :

RCL is created with respect to existing claims that were nat settled as of the reporting date. The valuation is
based on information received by the Company during the investigatdon of the insuted event. RINSL as a
whole is determined by summing up the RINSL calculated for each type of insurance accotding to the
requitements of the ME, which stipulate that the amount of RINSL in any case should not be less than 10
percent of the amount of the basic insurance premium under general insurance (reinsurance) contracts for the
period of twelve months ptiar to the reporting dates.

The shate of the reinsurer in the loss reserve is calculated in accardance with the share of the teinsuter under
the relevant reinsurance contract. The share of reinsurers in RCL is accounted for in reinsurance assets under
RCL until the full payment by the reinsurer of the insurance payment.

Test for the adequacy of the obligation. At each reporting date, an adequacy test is conducted to ensure the
adequacy of contractual obligations, net of related deferred acquisition costs {DAC). During these tests, the
most accutale available estimates of future conlractual cash ows, claims settlement costs, administrative
expenses, and investment returns from assets supporting these obligations are used.

Any deficiencies ate immediately reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, initially by
writing off the DAC, subsequently by creating a provision for losses arising from the adequacy test.

Finuncial instrutnents

Financial assets and labilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
when the Group becomes a party to the contract in respect of the related financial instrument. The Group
records the acquisition and sale of financial assets and liabilities on a settlement date, which arc regular. Standard
purchase or sale transactions are the purchase ot sale of financial assets that require the delivery of assets within
the dme limits established by regulatory enactments or market practices.

Financial assets
Financial assets ate classified in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); Available-

for-sale (AFS); Ioans and receivables. The assignment of financial assets to a particular class depends on their
characteristics and acquisition objectives and occurs at the time they are taken into account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset ts classified as a FVTPL, if it is either intended for trading or is defined as a FVTPL at the
time of initial recognition.

A financial asset 1s classified as held for sale if it;
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2 BAbI( PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)
' » Is purchased with the main purpose of reselling it in the near future;
* At inttial accounting, is part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed by the
Group as a smL,l(_ portfolio, for which there is a recent history of short-term purchases and resale;
or
e Is aderivative that is not classified and is not used as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset that is not hdd for sale can be dujgnat:,d asa r,ontrol document at the time of ¢ Acccptancc to
the account if:

~® The application of this classification eliminates or significantly reduces the lmbalancc in the
vajuation or accounting of assets or liabilities that might otherwise arise;
e A financial asset is part of a group of financial assets, financial hiabilities or a group of financial
assets and liabilities that is managed and evaluated based on a fair value in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy of investment strategy of the Company and information
. about such a group of financial assets js This basis; or
®  The financial liability is part of a tool contalning one or more embedded derivatives and 1AS 39
"Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits the instrument to be classified
as 2 whole (asset or '
®  liability) at fair value with recognition of its change in the income statement.
FVTPL financial assets recorded at fair value reflecting the tevaluation in profit or Joss. Net profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or intetest earned on the financial asset, are recognized in the line "Investment
income" in the statement of comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets of the category "AFS" are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-
gory gl

for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) investments held to maturity, {¢) financial assets
carried at fair value Through profit ot loss.

Shares and fixed-term bonds traded nn organized markets are classified as "available-for-sale” and are recorded
at fair value. The Group also has investments in shares that do not circulate on the organized market, which
ate also classified as financial assets of the category of the AFS and are accounted for at fair value {as the
Company's management believes that fair value can be measured reliably). Income and expenses arising from
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income as part of the investment revaluation
reserve, with the exception of those that are permanent in cases of impaitment of interest income caleulated
using the effective interest method, dividend income and foreign exchange gains that are recognized in profit
or Losses. When a financial asset is derecognized or depreciated, the cumulative gain ot loss previously
recognized in the investment revaluation reserve telates to the financial results during the petiod of disposal or
impairment.

The fair value of monetary assets classified as ATS in foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate as at the reporting date. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss ate
determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Investments in equity secutities classified as AFS, which ate not quoted in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, are cattied at cost less any impairment Josses identified at the end of each
reporting period.

I.oans and receivables provided

Trade receivables, loans and other recervables with fixed or determinable payments that are not traded in an
organized market including funds in banks, insurance and reinsurance receivables and other financial assets
are classified as "loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method less impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables, interest income on which is insignificant.
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
impaired if there is abjective evidence of a decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the asset as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the financial asset was recorded.

For non-traded investments in shates in the category of AFS, an objective evidence of 1mp11rmu)t is a
significant or prolonged du:um, in fa1r value below the cost of their acquisidon.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment may be as follows:

*  Significant financial difficulties of the issuet or counterparty; or

*  Violation of the contract, for example, refusal or evasion from payment of interest or principal
~amount of debt; or

*  Non-payment or delay in payment of interest and principal amount of debt or

. High probability of bankruptey or financial reorganization of the borrower; or

*  The disappearance of the active market for this financial asset due to financial difficulties.

For certain categories of finuncial assets, such as loans and receivables, assets that are not individeally
recognized as impaired are zlso assessed for impairment in the portfolio as a whole. An objective indication of
the depreciation of the portfolio of loans and receivables can be the past experience of the Group in recoveting
debts, increasing the number of delays in repaying portfolio debts, as well as pronounced changes in the pational
and local economy, which are usually accompanied by a default on payments.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impaitiment loss is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate for the financial asset.

For financial assets carried at cost, the impairment loss is defined as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current marker interest rate
for a similar financial asset. Such impaitment losses are not revetsible in futute petiods.

An impairment loss directly reduces the carrying amount of all financial assets, with the exception of loans and
recetvables, the reduction in value of which is due to the formation of a provision. If loans are recognized as
uncollectible, loans and receivables are also written off against the reserve. The reimbutsements of amounts
previously written off are credited against the reserve account. Changes in the provision are recognized in profit
or loss.

fa financial asset classified AFS is recognized as impaired, the gain or loss accumulated in other comptehensive
income is recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortized cost
decreases and such decrease can be objectively related to an event occurtring after the impairmenc was
tecognized, the previously recognized impaiement loss is recovered through the profit or loss account. At that,
the carrying amount of financial assets as of the date of restoration of an impaitment loss can not exceed the
amottized cost, which would be reflected in case if the impairment was not recognized.

Impairment losses on equity securities classified as AES previously recognized in profit ot loss is not reversed.
Any increase in fajr value of these assets after recognition of the impaitment loss is recognized ditectly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve investments.

In the case of debt securities classified as AFS impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if the increase in fair value of financial investments can be objectively linked to an event occurring after
the recognition of impairiment loss.
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Write-off of loans and receivables

If it is not possible to recover loans and recetvables, including by foreclosute, they ate written off against the
provision for impairment, Write-off of loans and receivables oceuts after the Company's management has taken
all possible measures w0 recover the amounts due to the Group, and after the Company has rezlized the available
collateral. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written aff are recorded as a reduction in the cost of
impairment of financial assets in the income statement during z the recovery period. :

Derccognition of financial assets

The Graup derecognizes financial assets only in the event of termination of contractual tights over them to
cash flows ot ini the event of the transfer of a financial asset and the related risks and benefits to the ather party.
If the Group does not transfer and does not recain alt the main risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and
continues to control the transferred asset, it continues to reflect its share in the asset and the associated possible
liabilities for possible payment of the related amounts. 1f the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownetship of the transferred financial asset, it continues to account for this financial asset, and the proceeds
from the transfer reflect a secured loan.

When a financial asset is fully written down, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
amount of canstderation received and receivable, as well as the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other
comptehensive income and accumulated in equity, relates to profit or loss.

If the recognition of a financial asset 15 not completely discontinued (for example, when the Group retains the
oppottunity to reputchase patt of the transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part that it continues to recognize in the continuing participation and the part
that it no longet recognizes Based an the relative values of the fair values of these parts as af the date of transfer.
The difference hetween the carrying amount allocated to the written-off part and the amount of consideration
received for the written-off part, as well as any profits or losses accumulated and distributed to it recognized in
other comprehensive income, relate to profit or loss. Income at expenses recognized in other comprehensive
income ate also distributed in proportion ta the fair value, withheld and written-off parts.

Issued financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as an obligation of capital. Debt and equity instruments issued by the Comypany are classified as
financial liabilities or capital based on the substance of the relevant contract, as well as the definitions of the
financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instruments. An equity inscrument is any contract that confirms the right to a share of the campany's
assets after deducting all its liabilities. Equity instraments issued by the Company are recognized in the amount
of proceeds from them, net of ditect costs incutted for their issue.

The repayment of the Company's own equity ustruments is deducted directly from the capital. The profit or
losy arising from the purchase, sale, issue or cancellarion of the Company's own shares is not recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial labilities

Financial liabilities, including insurance and teinsurance payables and other tinancial liabilities, are initally
recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
The interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is used to calculate the amortized cost of a financial liability and the aliocation
of interest expense in the relevant period. The effective intetest tate is the diseount rare of the expected future
cash payments (including all payments received or effecred an the debr instrument that are an integral part of
the effective interest tate, transaction costs and other premiums of discounts) for the expected petiod until the
financial liability is paid or (if applicable) for a shorter petiod to the book value at the time of its adoption.

19




NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Derecognition of financial liabilitics

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities only in case of redemption, cancellation or expiration of
requitements on them. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another obligation to the same creditor
undet substantially different terms, or the terms of the existing liability substantially change, sach an exchange
ot change is accounted fot s 2 write-off of the otiginal obligation and recognition of a new liability, The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that is derecognized and the consideration paid
or receivable s recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in associates

The assoeiate is the entity over which the Group has signifieant influence. Significant influence is the power ta
participate in decisions relating to the financial and economie activity of the enterprise, but is not control or
joint control in respect of such activities.

Assets and liabilities and financial performance of associates are included in these consolidated financial
statements on a participatory basis, unless the financial investment or part of it is elassified as held for sale and
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. For The equity investment method, investments in associates are
initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and subsequently adjusted o
including the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehenstve income of the associate. In the event
that the Group's share of the loss of the associate exceeds the Group's investment in that associate (including
any long-term investments thar arc in fac part of the Gronp's net investment in the assuciale), the Group
ceases to recognize its share of the loss. Additional losses are recognized only in cases where the Group has a
legal obligation or in accordance with the rules of business turnover to reimburse the corresponding share of
losses or if the Group has made payments on behalf of the dependent enterptise.

Investmens in an associate are accounted for using the equity method from the date on which it becomes an
assoctate. When an investment in an associate i acquired, the positive difference berween the acquisition cost
of the investment and the Group's interest in the fair vajue of the identi fiable assets and labthties of the investee
entity is goodwill, which is included in the catrying amount of such investments. 1f the Group's share in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of acquisition of the investment
after the revaluation, the excess is immediately recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the investmen
is aeyuired.

To determine whether recognition of an impairment loss on the Group's investrnent in associates it is applied
the requitements of TAS 39, If necessary, the carrying value of the investment (ncluding goodwill) is tested for
impairment according 1o TAS 36 "Impaitiuent of assets” as a whole by comparing its recoverable amount (the
highest value of the value in use znd fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amonnt. A recognized
impairment Joss reduces the carrying amount of the investment. Reversals of such tmpairment loss is
recognized in accordance with TAS 36 in cases where the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the application of the equity method from the date that the investment ceases to be
an associate or when the investiment satisfies the recognition criteria as held for sale. If the Group maintains a
share in the former associate which is a financial asset, then this inferest is measured at its fair value at that

financial asset in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of an associate as of
the date of rermination of the equity method of accounting and the fair value of all the remaining Interest and
all proceeds from the retirement of 4 part of the interest in the associate is accounted for jn detesmining the
profit and loss from the sale of the assoctate. In gelditon, all smounts previously recognized in other
comptehensive income in the part relating to the retiting associate are accounted for by the Group in the same
manner as would be tequired if the associate independently sold the related assers and liabilities. Accordingly,
if a gain or loss previously recognized in other comptehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when the
related assets ar Fabilities are sold, the Group reclassifies profit or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
reclassified adjustment) at the time of termination of the use of the equity method Patticipation.
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When the Group reduces its interest in an associate but continues to apply the equity method, a portion of the
profir or loss previnusly recognized in othet comprehensive income and attributable to such reduction in the
participatory interest is reclassified to profit or loss if such gains of losses are reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the related assets or liabilities. - '

If the Group member entity conducts trapsactions with an associate, the gains and losses arising from
transactions with the associate are recognized in the consolidated financia stare ments c)f thc, Group only to the
extent of thc interest in the associate that dnu\ not belong to the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted current and c'lepm.t accounts with banks with an
original matutity of less than three months.

Deposits in banks

In the normal course of business, the Group disburses funds and provides deposits to banks for various
periods. Amounts due from hanks are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amnrtized
cost using the effective interest method, Amounts due from banks are recorded net of any allowance for
impairment.

Accounts receivable on insurance and reingurance

The insurance receivable is recognized upon receipt of the relevanr incorne and is measured at initiai recopnition
at the fair value of the funds receivable. After inival recognition, the insurance receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The cartying amount of insurance receivables is the present
vajue of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the ariginal effective interest rate. The catrying amount of
insutance receivables is assessed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not he tecovered and the impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. .

The termination of recognition of accounts receivable for insurance is carried out when the criteria for
derecngnition of financial assets are met. '

Reinsutance

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers insurance risks to reinsurance. Reinsurance assets
tepresent funds receivable from remnsurance companies. The recoverable amounts are estimated in the same
way as the unearned premium reserve and the reserve ot losses and losses settlement costs and in accordance
with the reinsurance contract.

The impairment assessment is carried out at each reporting date or more frequently if there are indications of
impaitment duting the reporting year. Impairment atises when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to recaver the amounts teccivable from the reinsurer under the terms of the contract, and when
the inpact on them can be reliably measured. An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement.

The agreements transferred for reinsurance do not release the Group from liabilities to the insured.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company also assumes a risk n connection withi teiusurance under
general insurance contracts. Premiums and losses for accepted reinsurance ate recognized as jncome and
cxpenses in the same way as income and expenses {or direct ksurance, taking into account reinsurance classes.

Bonuses and payments are presented separately fot bath cutgoing and incoming reinsurance. The termination
of tecognition of reinsurance assets und liabilities is carried our when the conttactual obligations are fulfilled or
expired or when the contract is transferred to a third party.
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Fixed assets and intangible assets

Fixed assets and intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and
accumulated impairment lusses.

Depreciation and amortization are charged for the purpose of writing down fixed assets and intangible assets
during their useful life. Depreciation is accrued on the basis of the method of umform write-off of cost using
the following annual rates:

Buildings and other real estate : : 5%
Transport 15 %
Computers ' 20 %
Other : ' 15-20 %
Intangible assets 15 %

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the carrying amount of fixed assets and intangible assets
exceeds their rephcement cost. Ln case of excess of the book value of fixed assets and intangible assets of their
teplacement value, the Company reduces the carrying amount of fixed assets and intangible assets to their
teplacement value.

‘The gain of loss atising from the sale or disposal of an asset is recognized as the difference between the sale
price and the carrying amount of the asset in the income statement.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred rax,

Current income tax

The amount of expenses for income tax in the current petiod 1s determined taking into account the amount of
taxable profit received for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit recorded in the income statement, as
it does not include items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible n other vears, and excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that are
effective during the reporting period.

Deterred income tax

Deterred tax is provided on the basis of the balance sheet method of accounting and represents income tax
claims or liabilities accrued on the difference between the carrying amount of assets and lizbilities and the
corresponding tax records used to calculate taxable profit. Deferred cax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recorded to reflect the likelihood of future taxable
profits for offsetting the related deferred tax assets.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the tax benefit will be obtained sufficient to recover the asset in whole or in part.

Defetted taxes are calculared at rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is sold. Deferred income tax expense is charged to the income statement, except when they relate to items
that are directly attriburable to other comprehensive income, in which case deferred taxes are also recognized
in other comprehensive income.

The assessment of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences of the Group's intentions (as
of the end of the reporting period) with respect to how to recover or pay off the carrying amount of assers and
liabilities.

Current tax and deferred income tax are recognized in profit or loss unless they relate to items that are directly
recognized in other comprehensive income or equity. '
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In the Republic of Uzbekistan there are requirements for the calculation and payment of various taxes
applicable to the activides nf the Group. Thuw taxes are included in operating expenses in the statement of
income.

Accounts payable on insurance and reinsutance

Accousts payable for insarance includes advances reccived, debts to policyholders for claims and
reimbursement for canceled contracts and debts 1w agents and brokers, as well as advances receiverd fmm
surers and reinsaters,

Accounts payable for reinsurance includes net indebtedness for reinsurance. Indebtedness for retnsurance
includes premiums transferred to reinsnrance, reimbursement of premiums accepted for seinsurance for
canceled contracts and claims for accepted reinsutance. Accounts payable for insurance and reinsurance are
recorded at amortized cost.

Reserves

Resetves are recognized when the Group has cuntingcnt liabilities arising from past events that are determined

by law or implied, for the settlement of which it is probable that an outllow of resources embodying ceanomie
henefirs will he required and the amount of such Jiabiliries can be estinted reliably.

The amount of the provision for futare expenses recorded is the best estimate of the amount necessary tn settle
the obligations, determined at the end of the reporting perind, raking into account the risks and uncertainties
inherent in these obligations. Tf the umuunt of the tesetve of future expenses is caleulated on the basis of the
estimated cash flows for the repayment of liabilities, the reserve of future expenses is defined as the present
value of such cash flows (if the influence of the value of money over time is significant).

If it is expected thar the payments necessary to settle the obligations wili be partially or fully recovered by a
third party, the relared receivables are recognized as assets subject to full assurance that the reimbursement will
be received and if there is an oppartunity to reliably estimate the amount of that receivable.

Share capital and dividends

Contributinns to the share capital are recorded at cost. Dividends on common shares are reflected as a decrease
in equity in the period in which they were declared. Dividends declared after the balance sheet date are treated
as evenrs after the reporting date in accordance with IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Date ("TAS 10%) and
disclosed accordingly.

FCII_'Pi gl"l oirren oy

In prepating the financial statemenrs, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group
("forcign currencies") ate accounted for at the exchange rate as of the transaction date. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the UZS at the appropiiate current exchange
race as ar the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the tate applicable ar the
date of the transaction. The gains and losses arising from such translation arc included in the net profit / (oss)
on foreign exchange transactons. The exchange rates at the end of the year used by the Company in preparing

the financial statements are as follows:
31 December 31 December

2016 2015
UZS/1 US Dollar 3231.48 2.809.95
UZS/1 Euru _ ' 3419.23 3,074.19
UZS /1 Russian Ruble 53.10 39.99

UZS /1 British Pound Sterling - 3969.23 . 4.191.93
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Essential assumptions and sources of uncertainty in estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management must make assumptions, estimates
and agsumptions about the cartying amount of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources,
Estimates and undetlying assumptions are based on past experience and other factors that are cons;dcmd
relevmt in the par ticular circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and associated assumptions are regularly reviewed. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period.
in which the estimate was revised, if the change affects only that pertod, or in the period in which the estimate
was revised, and in future periods, if the change affects both current and fature periods.

Essential assumptions used in applying accounting policies

Below are significant assumptions other than those where there is uncertainty mn the estimates (see below) that
the Group's management used in applying the Company's accounting policies and which most significantiy
affect the amounts reflected i the Anancial statements. ' :

Allowance for losses

The loss teserve is an estimate of the labilities for future insurance payments and includes a reserve of claimed
josses (RCL) and a reserve of incurred bat not settled losses (RINSL).

RCI. is created with respect to existing claims that were not settled 25 of the repotting date. The valuation is
based on iformation received by the Company during the investigation of the insured event. The RINSL as a
whole is determined by summing up the RINSL ealeulated for each type of insurance according to the MF
requirement, which stipulates that the amount nf the RINSL should in no case be less than 10 percent of the
amount of the basic insurance premium under general insurance (rcmsurance) contracts for a period of twelve
months Before the reporting dare. -

The share of the reinsurer in the loss reserve 15 caleulated in accordance with the share of the reinsuret undet
the relevant reinsurance contract, The share of reinsurers in RCL is accounted for in reinsurance assers under
RCL until the full payment by the reinsurer of the insurance payment.

VYaluation of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation methods that take into account inputs that are not based on observable market data
used in determining the fair value of [inancial instruments, as well as a detailed analysis of the sensitivity of
estimates with respect to these assumptions. Management believes thar the valuation rechniques chosen and
the assumptions used ate approptiate to determine the fair value of financial nstruments,

Investments are recorded at cost

Management can nor reliably estimate the fair valie oof the (Group's invesrments in equity instruments available
for sale.

3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
RETORTING STANDARDS
Amendments to IFRSs that affect financial reporting

The new and revised staudards and interpretations listed below were firstly applied in the current period and
affected the financial indicators presented in these financial statements,

. Amendments to TFRS 10, IFRS 12 and TAS 27 - "Investment Organizations”;
’ Amendments to TAS 32 - "Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities";
. Amendments to IAS 36 - Disclosures about the recoverable amount of non-financial assets;
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3 APPLICATION OF. NEW AND REVISED IN‘TERNATIONAL -FINANICIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation) ' ' - ' o
. Clarification of the IFRIC 21 "Levies".

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - "Investment Organizations”, The amendments to IFRS
10 exempr investment organizations from the consolidation of subsidiaries. Instead, investment entities are
required to measure their interest in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in theit and separate
financial statements. The exccpt!on does not apply to those subsidiaties rhat pmv:de services rdated to the
investment qctlvlq of the investment organization. :

Organization is considered as an investment company if it meets several ceiteria:

«  receives funds from one or more investors to provide them with professional investment management
services,

. pi‘OV]dLb investors with an assurance that the purpose of its business is solely to iavest in capital gains,
generate investment income, ot both;

+  estimates the results of almost all investments ar fair value.

Amendments to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 provide for additional disclosures thar are mandatory for investment
nstitations.

These amendments did not have an impact on the Company's financial statements, as the Company is not an
investment organization. :

‘The impact of the application of these standards is presented below:

Amendments to 1AS 32 - "Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities". The amendments to TAS 32 clarify
the application of the requirements for netting of financial assets and financial labilities. In particular, the
meanings of the phrases "existing legally enforceable right of netting” and "simultaneous sale of the asset and
settlement of the obligation” are explained.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's financial statements due to the lack of financial assets and
liabalities to which the netting rules apply.

Amendments to IAS 36 - Disclosures about the recoverable amount of non-financial assets. The
amendments to IAS 36 limit the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit only in those periods in which the impairment loss was recognized or reversed. In addition, the
amendments Introduce additional disclosare requirements in the event that the tecoverable amount has been
determiced based on the fair value less costs to divest, The new disclosure includes the hietarchy of fair value,
the main assumptions used and valuation methods that comply with the disdosure requxrements specified in
IFRS.

IFRS 13 "Mleasurcinenry of fair valae ™

Clarification of the IFRIC 21 “Tevies” The clarification applies to all payments made by the government
other than income taxes that are accounted for in accordance with 1AS 12 and penalties for violation of law.
The clarification states that the obligation to pay the fee is tecognized only when the binding event occurs; this
clarification also provides guidance on detetmining whether an obligation should be recognized gradually over
a period or in a full amount as of a certain date. The clarification did not have an impact on the financial
statements, except for changes made to the accounting policy.

The company did not apply ahead of schedule other standards, amendments and interpretations that werc
issued, but did not enter into force.

New and revised IFRSs issued but nort yer effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and explanztions have not yet entered into force as of
31 December 2016 and have not been applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
Of these innovations, the following standards, amendments and clarifications have the potential to affect the
Group's operations.

The Group plans to begin applying these standards, amendments and clanfications from the moment they

come into force.
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3 APPLICATION OF NEW AN REVISED INTERNATIONAL TFINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation) '

IERS 9 "Financial Instruments"

WRS 9 “Financicd Distrwmrents”, published in July 2014, repiaced the existing guidance to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and includes requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

Classification and evaluation

IFRS Y contains three main appraisal categoties of financial assets: measured at amortized cost, measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income FVOCH and measured at fair vadue through profit or loss
(FVTPL). In accordance with IFRS 9, the classification of financial assets is determined primarily on the basis
of the business model in which the financial asset is managed and the characteristics of contractual cash flows.
The standard eliminates the category of financial assets that exist in TAS 39: financial assets held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available-fot-sale financial assets. Undet IFRS 9, derivadves that ate embedded in a
host contract that is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are not separated from the host contract.
Instead, the entire hybrid contract is fully evaluated [ur classification, Byguity insttuineits are measued at fair
value.

IFRS 9 largely retained the requirements in IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities.

Ipattiment

With respect to impatrment, IFRS 9 introduces a new, forward-looking mode} of "expected credit losses” that
replaces the "incurred credit loss" model established by 1AS 39. Applying the new impairment model will
require significant professional judgment from the Company, how changes in economic factots affect the
expected credit losses, detetmined by weighing the probability of nccurrence.

A new impairment modei will apply o financiai assets measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, exclading investments in equity instraments, as well as to contractual assets.

In accordance with 1FRS 9, the estimated provisions for expected credit losses will be estimated in one of the
following ways:

* based on 12-month expected credit josses. These are the expected ctedit losses that will arise as a resule of
defaults possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

* on the basis of expected credit losses for the entire period. This is the expected credit loss, arising from all
possible cases of default throughout the expected life of the financial instrument.

An estimate of the expected credit losses for the entire period is applied if the credit risk on the financial asset
at the reporting date has increased significandy since the initial recognition, Otherwise, the estimated credit
loss is estimated for 12 months after the balance sheet date. In this case, the enterprise is entitled to use the
assumption that the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial
recognition, if it was determined that the financial instrument has a low credit risk as of the reporting date.
However, in respect of trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain significant funding
components, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the entire period should always be applied. An
enterprise can choose as its accounting policy the same approach for both trade receivables and contract assets
that contain significant financing components.

Hedge acconnting

The general hedge accounting requirements are aimed at simplifying hedge accounting, more convergence of
hedge accounting with risk management strategies. The standard does not contain direct guidance on the
accounting for macro hedging, which is considered in a separate project. IFRS 9 provides for the sctection of
an accounting policy with respect to the ability of the Company to continue accounting for hedges in
accordance with TAS 39.

Transition ro JFRS 9
The requirements for classification and assessment and impairment are generally applied retrospectively (with

certain exemptinns) by adjusting the opening balance of retained earnings and reserves at the date of initial
application. The standard does not require recalculation of comparative historical data,
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3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation) '

IFRS 9 becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, Early application of the
standard is allowed. The Group does not intend to apply this standard ahead of schedule in full.

The group has begun to develop a transition plan to IFRS 9 and will soon begin to formally assess the potential
impact of applying IFRS 9 to its financial statements. At the time the consolidated financial statements are
prepared, it is not possible from a practical point of view to assess the 1mpact that IFR.‘:: 9 will have on the
Group's financial statements,

1IRS 16 4 ewses” replaces the current guidance on accounting for leases, including TAS 17 T eases”, TERIC 4
"D eberzination .u/ the freserive r}/ the fease aPruesent i the apreosend” (/a.*ymdzmx 0] the SIC 15 ”O])Emftl{{{ IJ&J‘H -
Incentives” and Clatification of the SIC 27 "Analysis of the nature aj transactions that have a lgal form of kase'. The
pew stundard abulislies the double accounting wodel currendy applied w the lessee's account. This model
requires classification of leases for financial leases recotded on the balance sheet and operating leases that are
accounted for by the balance sheet. Instead, it introduces a single accounting model, which reflects a lease on
the balance sheet and has a similarity to the cutrent accounting for finance leases. For the lessors, the accounting
rules cutrently in force are generally presetved - the lessors witll continue to classify the lease for financial and
operating leases. IFRS 16 becomes effective for annual pertods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Early
adoption of the standard is permicted provided that 1FRS 15 "Rexennes snder controets with cestomers” will also be
applied. The Group does not intend to apply this standard ahead of schedule. The Group is in the process of
assessing the possible impact of IFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements. .

IIRS 15 "Reveine wnder contracts with costomers’ establishes a general system of principles for determining whether
revenue should be recognized, in what amount and when. The standard replaces the current guidance on
revenue recognition, including LAY /7 Constraetion Confracts, 1AS 18 Revenser and [FRIC 13 Customer 1ovolty
Pragrams. IFRS 15 becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Barly application
of the standard is allowed. The Group does not intend to apply this standard ahead of schedute. The Group is
in the process of assessing the possible impact of IFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements.

The following new standards or amendments to standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements,

"Dirajt revision of disclosure requirements (Amendments to TAS 7 "Siateent of Cash Flows ")

Recognition of deferred tax assets for future unused tax losses (amendments to IAS 12 "Income taxes")
Classification and valuation of share-based payment transactions (amendments to LIRS 2 "Share-hosed
payments"),

Various "Improvements to IFRS are considered in telation to each standard separately. All amendments that
lead to changes in accounting records for presentation, recognition or valuation are effective no eatlier than
TJanuaty 1, 2017. The Group did not analyze the possible impact of improvements on tts financial positton or
performance

4 IMPORTANT EVALUATION VALUES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLICATION OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company makes accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reflected in the financial
statements and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next financiaf year. Acconnting estimates and
judgments are subject to constant analysts and ate based on past management experience and ather facrors,
including expectations of future events that are considered valid under the circumstances. In the process of
applying accounting policies, management also makes nse of professional judgments, except for accounting
estimates. Professional judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized mn the
financial statements and accnunting estimates that could result in the need for a significant adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:
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4 IMPORTANT EVALUATION VALUES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLICATION OF

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Recognition of deferred tax asset. Recognized deferred tax assets represent the amount of income tax that
can be offset against future income taxes; They are reflected in the statement of financial position. A deferred
tax asset is recognized only if the use of the relevant tax deduction is highly probable. This assumes the existence
of temporary differences, the restoration of which is expected in the future, and the existence of sufficient
future taxable profits for the prodactlnn of deductions. The definition of futurn taxalde profits and the amount
of tax deductions likely to offset in the future is based on the medium-term business plan prepared by the
management and the results of its extrapolation for the future, The business plan is based on management
expectations that are considered reasonable in the circumstances.

Tax legislation. The rax, currency and castoms legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan allows for different
mterpretatl()ns

Initial recognition of transactions with related parties. In the ordinary course of business, the C ompany
conducts transactions with related parties. Under 1AS 39, initial recognition of financial instruments is based
on their fair value, Judgment is used in determining if transactions are valued at market or non-market interest
rates when there is no active market for such transactions. The basis of the judgment is to evaluate similar types
of transactions with unrelated parties and to analyze the effective intesest rate.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

7 INVESTMENT INCOME FROM OPERATIONS WITH FINANCIAL A‘%‘SF IS AT FAIR
VALUE THR()UGH PR()I*]T ()R LOSS

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2016 December 2015
Interestincome _ 2474822 1 658 946
“‘Unrealised gains/{losses) on change in fair value 208 246 o (546 485)
“Investment management expenses ' : '
including interest expense {505 210) (388 561)
Losses on the realisation of investments {49 115) (89 715)
Total Investment income from financial '
assets at fair value through profit or loss 2128744 634 185
5 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2016 December 2015
Staff cost and related taxes 10843 709 10179 900
Taxes other than income tax . 6107 114 863 763
Charity 4 503 256 3584 232
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1893917 2089477
Rent of premises and utiliies expenses 1013 427 713 815
Office supplies 977 813 324 098
Bank commission charges ' 821 641 .590 157
Transport expenses 744 256 412 363
Professional services 734 525 2511529
Security senvices 475 300 - 206576
Business trip expenses 458 123 433 382
Communication 303 849 188 870
Maintenance ofprOperty and equipment 242 183 105 833
Training ' 132 555 1256 846
Uther 2 347 230 1 558 465
Total adminstrative and operating expenses ' 31 698 895 23 890 236

9 INCOME TAX

‘The Company prepares tax settlements based on the data of tax accounting carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan, which may differ from IFRS.

Due to the fact that certain types of expenses are not taken into account for tax purposes, and due to the
availability of non-taxable income, the Company has permanent wax differences. Investment income ansing
from gavernment securities and securities quoted on the exchange is exempt from taxation.

Deferred tax reflects the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount that is determined for tax purposes. The temporary
differences available as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are mainly attributable to various methods of accounting
for income and expenses, as well as the recorded value of certain assets.

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Company's profits consists of cotporate income tax (2016:
7.5%, 2015: 7.5% and 2014: 8%) and an infrastructure development tax (2016: 8%, 2015: 8% and 2014 : 8%)
{tax base for infrastructure development tax}.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

9 INCOME TAX (Continuation) :
o N Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2016 December 2015
Currént income tax o E ' 1262 314 555 230
Deferred income tax _ - 371 847 525997
“Income tax expense : ' 1634 161 1081 236
The rax effect of temporary differences as of 31 December 2036 and 2015 is as foliows
31 December 31 December
2016 2016
Tax effect of deductable temporary differences: _
Investments available for sale ' : 293 285 253 644
Depuosils in banks ' 86 364 86 364
Insurance and reinsurance payable 311 721 52 965
Total deferred tax assets 691 370 392 973
Tax effect of deductable temporary differences: _
Investments in associates (41 836) (52 282)
Deferred acquisition costs ' (1501 897) (1 261 6800)
Provision for insurance losses (1948 935) (1 506 445)
Other {194 963) (197 060)
Total deferred tax liabilities ' {3 687 631) {3 017 387)
Net deferred tax liabilities ' ' (2 996 261)

(2 624 414)
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10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2016 ' 2015

Balances with banks in foreign currencies 4 373 641 2091932
Balances with banks in UZS 2 B51 508 10 252 174
Total cash and cash equivalents 7 225149 12 344 106

11 . DEPOSITS IN BANKS

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Placements denominated in foreign currencies with
ariginal maturities of more than three maonths
Placements denominated in UZS with
original maturities of more than three months 31 8650270 19 148 249
Less impairment provision (579 622) {560 000)

113 028 698 99 336 399

Total deposits in banks 144 099 346 117 924 648

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS REFLECTED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR L.OSS

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Government bonds 62422829 53 387 049
Corporate bonds 100 799 514 85 481 648
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 163 222 342 138 868 697

Financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss include investments in foreign currencies held by UIIC,
These securities were managed by Falcon Private Wealth Limited {UK) under an investment management
contract, These investments arc deformed into several types of freely convertible currencies with fixed
interest rates, fluctuating between 0.42% and 3.75%. '
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
13 INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

31 Pecember 2016 31 December 2015
JSICB Ipak Yuli Bank . o 15129625 11 836 345
JSCB Qishlog Qurilish Bank . o 5170238 4 378 550
JSCB Microcredit Bank _ : : 2735989 2735899
JSMCB Ipoteka Bank - - 4364 301 3290669 . .
JSC Kizilkum Cement 2 356 338 2181 563
CJSC Aza Invest Bank 1384 681 1 384 681
JSCB Uzpromstroybank 685038 1363 830
SK Asko Vostok LLC : 696 660 -~ 896 660
JSC Tashsvetmedzavod 612 954 612954
JSCB Asaka Bank _ 576 b2 576 502
SJ5C Uzmarkazmpex _ 583 002 529 721
SJCS Markazs anoatexport : ' 425000 550 000
Baraka Leasing ) 539 918 - hhh 1493
SJSC Uzinterimpex 524 074 524 074
SJ8C Uzprommashimpex 616 402 616 402
Kashkadarya Technologic Transporti LLC 499 525 670 185
JS Nawipakhtos anoat 177 301 177 301
SJCIC Kafolat . 227 160 227 160
JSCB Hamkorbank 210 569 210 569
0JSC Mulk sarmoya brokerlik uyi ' 148 945 148 945
IC Kishlog qurilish invest - 141 000
JSC Agrobank : 143 987 143 987
JSIC Alskom 96 938 - 96 938
Karakul Paxta Tozalash zavodi LLC . 64 063 " B4 063
Other 574 027 402 207
Total investments availabte for sale 38 563 324 34 125 598

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, available-for-sale investments are cartied at cost less impairment losses
because they do not have market quotes in an active market and management believes that their cost
reasonably approximates a fair market cost. ' '
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14 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

‘31 December 2016

Corporate bonds ' ' 800 000

31 December 2015

2 800 000
Corporate loans : _ © 493083 493 083
Loans to employaes ' 339 067 298 917
Total loans and recéiQabIes | 1 632 150

15 RECEIVABLES FOR INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE

31 December 2016

3 592 600

31 December 2_01 5

Amounts due from policyholders 2672345 1918 208
Armounts due from reinsurers : 493765 40 282
Amounts due from agenls and brokers 659 257 17 663

Total insurance and reinsurance receivable 3 825 367

1976 153
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

i7 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

- 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Deferred acquisition costs as at 1 January 8467 111 5838179
Additions: '
Brokerage and selling commissions 10 686 820 9 205 935
Payroil-and related taxes 6625914 . 5012089 ..
Advertising and marketing 598 677 398473
Total 17 911 481 .14 616 467
Amortisation: : :
Brokerage and selling commissions {9 052 626) (7 123 623)
Payroll and related taxes (5210 728) {4 547 937)
----- Advertising and marketing (439 304) (315 970)

Total {14 702 658) {11 987 535)
Deferred acduisition costs at 31 December 11675934 8 467 111
Change in deferred acquisition costs
Deferred acquisition cost at 1 January 8467 111 5838179
Increase in deferred acquisition costs 3208 823 2628932
Batance at 31 Pecember 11 675 934 8467 111
18 OTHER ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Other financial assets
Other accounts receivable 3135427 2710403
Tatal ather financial assets 3135427 2710403
Other non-financial assets
Advances to suppliers 3406 151 5 045 797
Prepaid expenses 901 930 343 550
Tax prepayments 186 412 219 390
Other 762097 484 762
Total non-financlal assets 5256 590 6 093 500
Total other assets 8 392 017 8 803 903
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19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ON INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE

Amounis payable to reinsurers
Amounts payable to insurers

Advances received for the insurance activity

Amounts payable fo agents and brokers

Total insurance and reinsurance payable

20 UNEARNED PREMIUMS RESERVE

Provislon for unearned premlums as at

1 January 2016

Change in provision for unearned
premiums, net of reinsurance

Provision for unearned premiums as at
31 December 2016 '

Provision for unearhed premilums as at
1 January 2015

Change in provision for unearned
premiums, net of reinsurance

Provision for unearnad premiums as at
31 December 2015

~ 31 December 31 December
2016 2015
2481524 6 045 880

307 860 203 791

" 181182 1983 440

49 282 17 610
3019848 8 950 721

Reinsurer's share
in provision for

Net

Provision for
unearned premiums unearned
premiums
32421 590 {17 827 240) 14 784 350
17 881 837 (16 556 492) 1325345
50 303 427 (34 183 732) 16 119 695
Reinsurer's share
Provision for in provision for
. Net
unearned premiums unearned
premiums
21648 192 (8 639 519) 13008 673
10773 398 (B9B7 721) 1 785677
32421 590 {17 627 240) 14 794 350

40




NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

21 RESERVES FOR INSURANCE LOSSES

Life

RBNS IBNR 31 December
insurance 2016
provision . . Total
Provision for insurance losses 3276 305 7 632 817 34 463 466 - 45372588
Remgurer_s_share in provision (515 783) (4 006 652) 3 (4 522 435)
for insurance losses :
Provision for insurance losses, 2 760 522 3626166 34 463 466 40 850 153
net of reinsurance for 2016
RBNS IBNR Life 31 December
insurance 2015
provision Total
Provision forinsurance losses 4 541 959 7 502 570 21 262 857 33 307 385
Reinsurer's share in provision (432 807) (4181 418) _ (8 744 985)
forinsurance losses
Provision for insurance losses, 4 444 455 3321152 21262 857 24 562 401
net of reinsurance for 2015
22 OTHER LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December
: 2016 2015
Cther financial liabilities
Payables to suppliers 292 6790 1 875174
Payables to employees 401 135 218 316
Other accounts payable 1 490 840 82 763
Total other financial Habilities 2 184 645 2176 253
Cther non-financial liabilities
Pavables to budget and non-budget funds 1406676 332 144
Accruals and deferred income 3604 691 307 614
Total other non-financial liabilities 5011 367 639758
Total other liabilities 7196 012 2816 011
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
23 EQUITY
Share capital

In February 1997, by the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the share capital of the Group
was increased from the equivalent of 10 mitlion US dollars to the equivalent of 60 million US dollars, i.e. 3 453
000 thousand sum.

In accordance with the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan "On Measures for Further
Liberalization and Development of the Insurance Market" of Japuary 31, 2002, all insurance companies
operating in the Republic of Uzbekistan were exempt from income tax fora period of 3 years until January 31,
2005 of the year. According to the Decree, the funds, exempted from taxes at a nominal value of 2,189,070
thousand UZS, were classified in the authorized capital after the expiration of the fax exemption period.

31 Dacember 31 December

2016 2015
Nominal amount Inflation adjusted Nominal amount Inflation adjusted
amount amount

) 58642070 14 257 325 5642 070 16 257 326
Share capital

The effect of inflation on ordinary shares is accounted for in accordance with TAS 29 "Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies” ("IAS 29™.

In accordance with 1AS 29, the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan was considered to be hyperinflationary
during 2005 and prior years, Since January 1, 2006, the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan has ceased to
be considered as hyperinflationary, and the value of the Bank's non-monetary assets, liabilities and equity
capital, presenied in the measuting units current as of 31 Decembet 2005, was used to generate incoming
balance balances as of Januaty 1, 2006 ' '

Reserve for investment purposes

The Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan contributed to the Group a contribution of 24,779,214
thousand UZS, which is equivalent to 801,245 thousand US doliars, for the purpose of investing 118§ 80,000,000
(0 UTIC and US § 245,000 in AIG Uzbekistan Limited (formerly "Chartis Uzbekinvest Limited" ") located in
the UK. As indicated in Note 1, in 2009, both the UTIC shareholder, the Uzbekinvest National Export-Import
Insutance Company (with 80% of the interest) and American Inrernational Underwriters Overseas Ltd (with
a 20% inLerest), reduced their investments by 20,000 thousand dollars USA each. As a result, the Group hecame
the sole owner of UTIC with an authorized capiral of 60,000 thousand US dollars. The gronp rerurned funds
to the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan in the amount of 6,191,278 thousand UZS.

On July 27, 2010, the Group reduced its interest n the UTIC to USD 50 million by a subsequent withdtawal
of USD 10 million of investments from the shate capital and retuened these funds to the Governmente of the
Republic of Uxbekistan in the amount of 3,133,338 thousand UZS. As a result of this transaction, the remaining
amount of the Group's contribution to the share capital of UIIC was US § 50,000 thousand, cquivalcnt to
15,454,598 rhousand UZS. . :

Special insnrance reserve

By the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the Company was exempt from income tax and
property tax for five years ending in February 2002. In accordance with this Decree, part of the Company's
profits and the released funds from the profits tax and property tax benefits are dirceted to replenish the
Company's share capital. After the authorized capital is fully formed, the released {unds are senl Lo the Special
Insurance Reserve, As of May 1, 1999, the Company's quthorized capital was fully formed, and from that
moment all released funds were sent to the Special Insutanice Reserve.

In addition, in accordance with the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the company was
also exempt from income lax on dividends and interest income from June 2008 tor three yeats.
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23 EQUITY (Continuation)

Stabilization reserme

According to the Regulations of the Ministry of Finance No. 107 of November 20, 2008 on insurance reserves
of the insurer, insurance companies must create a stabilization reserve for OSGO and OASGO. Stabilization
reserve is formed due to the transfer of funds from undisttibuted profits to cover unforeseen futute losses of

the Company. As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the stabilization reserve was 3 141 237 thousand UZS and _

2151 467 thousand UZS, respccuve]y

I;"xfbmgge differences

Exchange differences - the difference from the transfer of net investment in ULIC from the functional currency
- the dollar - to the presentation currency of the Group - UZS. As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, exchange
differences from translation of foreign units into the reporting currency were 160,424,000 thouszmd UZS and

139 361 031 thousand UZS, respectively.

24 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lawsuits

From time to time, in the course of the Company's business, customers and counterparties may raise claims
against the Company. Management believes that as a result of the proceedings on them the Company will
not incur significant losses and, accordingly, no teserves have been created in the financial statements.

Taxation

Due to the existence in the tax legislation of Uzbekistan of norms permitting ambiguous interpretation,
management's assesstment of the facts of the Company's economic activities may not coincide with the
interpretation of these facts by the rax authorities, Tax authorities may take a more assertive position in
interpreting legislation and determining the amount of taxes, and operations and activities that have not
previously been challenged may be challenged. As a result, taxes may be added, as well as fines and penalties.
The five preceding calendar years remain open for inspection by the tax authorities. Under certain
circumstances, inspections may cover longer periods. The Company's management believes that its
interpretation of the relevant tax legislation is appropriate and the Company's tax position is protected.

Liabilities on capital commitments
As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

Operating lease commitments

As 0f 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had no material Habilities under opetating leases,

Operating environment

The markets of developing countries, including the Republic of Uzbekistan, are subject to economic,
political, social, judicial and legislative risks, different from the risks of mote developed markets. Laws and
regulations governing business in the Republic of Uzbekistan can change rapidly, there is the possibility of
their arbitrary interpretation. The future direction of the development of the Republic of Uzbekistan largely
depends on the tax and monctary policy of the state, the laws and regulations adopted, as well as changes in
the political situation in the country.
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25 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties or transactions with related parties in accordance with the definition in IAS 24 "Related Party
Disclosures” are set out below. '
When considering the possible existence of relations between refated parties, attention is paid to the
substance of the relationship, and not only to their legal design. As at ’S} December 2016, the Company has
the following transactions with related parties:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
Lease of Fixed assets _ . 25142 22 394
Loans and receivahles o : 4 389 14 783
Gross insurance premiums : . 948 8735
Dividend income ' ' 899 475 687 534

Total _ : 929 955 733 445

26 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with TFRS, the lair value is determined taking i accouns the price that would have been
received upon the sale of the asset or paid when transferring the obligation under a regular transaction
between market participants as of the valuation date.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company recorded at fair value on a
permanent basis

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are accounted for at fair value at the end of
each reporring period. The table below provides information on how the fair value of these financial assets
and financial liabilities is determined (in particular, the valuation technique (s) used and the inputs).

31 December 2018 31 December 2015
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Deposits in banks 1435192724 144 099 346 118 484 648 117 224 648
Loans and receivables 163715425 163 222 342 8823524 8 803 903

The reclassification of financial instruments between Levels 1 and 2 was not cartied out during the year.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not taken into account but the fair
valuc on an ongoing basis (but with a mandatory disclosure of fair value)

In the opinion of management of the Group, the careving amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximates their fair value.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities was determined in accordance with generally accepted
valuation models based on discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant initial data being the
discount rate that reflects market quotces for similar financial instruments with a similar maturity.
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is critical in insurance operations and is one of the main elements of the Company's business.
The main risks inherent in the Company's activities are insurance risk, credit risk, market risk, operational risk
and liquidity risk. The following is a description of the Company's policy reg'lrc*mg the manapement of these
risks.

Insurance risk

The risk for any insurance contract is the possibility that, in the event of an insurance event, there will be an
uncertainty in the amount of the insurance claim. Due to the dlffu ent charactcmtlcs of insurance contracts,
this risk is accidental and therefore unpredictable.

For the purposes of the portfolio of insurance contracts, where the probability theoty is applied in relation to
the cost and cteation of reserves, the main risk to which the Group is exposed is the risk that the actual
payments for claims will exceed the book value of insurance Labilities. This can happen if the frequency or
severity of claims is highet than estimated. Insurance cases are an itregular event, and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will differ from year to year from estimates made using statistical methods.

Factors that increase insurance tisk include the inadequacy of risk diversification depending on the type and
amount of risk, geographic location and type of coverage of the insured.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the less the relative variabulity of
the result will be. In addition, 2 mote diversified portfolio is less susceptible to ch'mgm in any subset of the
portfolio.

The group has deve]opul an insurance underwriting strategy that consists in dIV(,I‘SIf) ing the types of insurance
and the geography of the risks taken in order to achieve sufficient occupancy in each of these categories and
thereby reducing the vanability of the expected result. The group included a significant margin in the cost of
premiums.

The Group also has the right to refuse payment of a falsified claim or claim arising from a policy whete the
policyholder provided false information during the preparation of the policy statement and the insurance stage.

Insurance contracts are divided into five groups of risk: property and accidents, liability, political risks,
construction and installation works, life insurance. Liability insurance includes general liability insurance and
professional liability insurance. In additon, political risk insurance mainly includes insurance against
confiscation, deprivation of property and nationalization, which ate issued exclusively by the UIIC. During
2016, insurance risks for these groups wete not concentrated on any of the individual currencies; In the total
portfolio, there is 4 balance between customers who are legal entities and individuals.

Given these circumstances, the Group intends to achieve the required level of risk diversification and
reinsurance in order to minimize risk.

Settlement of claims for the Group's policies occurs as they anse. The Group takes all reasonable steps to
obtain the necessary information regarding risks and claims, However, if one takes into account the possibility
of uncerrainty in the creation of reserves for claims, the final result may diffee significantdy from the ofiginal
obligation. Obligations under these contracts include IBNR.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of husiness, the Company enters inta ohligatary and facultarive reinsitrance agreements
with Uzbek and foreign reinsurers. Contracts for reinsurance do not exempt the Company from its obligations
to the insured. The Company assesses the financial position of its reinsurers and monitors the concentration
of credit risk arssing mn simular geographic regions, activities o ecconomic chatactetistics of relnsurers, in otder
to minimize the risks of significant losses due to insolvency of the reinsuret. '
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Con tinuatian)

Investment risks

The Company's investment policy follows several principles based on the level of income and the level of
acceptable risk at a certain point in time. The activity of insurance companies in Uzbekistan ts under strict
supervision. State Insurance Supervision and the Company are not allowed to be a professional participant in
the secuarities market.

The investment portfolio of the Company consists of financial instruments that are selected according to the
rates of return, maturity and the level of investment risk. The investment portfolio formed in this way provides
an even return duting the investment pu‘wd Investment income s usually reinvested to increase the volume
of the investment portfolio. : Co

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that vne of the patties to a cransaction with a financial
instrument will cause the ather party to incur financial losses as a result of default on the contractual ob]lgatmn
The main areas of activity where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

, cxposure to corporate bonds:

. the share of reinsurets in insurance linbilities;

. amounts receivable from reinsurers regarding previously paid claims;
. amounts receivable from holders of insurance contracts;

. amounts receivable from insurance intermediaries; and

. counterparty risk in relation to derivative transactions.

Reinsurance 1s used to manage insurance risk. However, this does not telieve the Group from being a primary
insuter. In the event that the reinsurer is unable to pay claims for any reason, the Group remains responsible
fot payments to the policyholders. The creditworthiness of reinsuters is reviewed annually by reviewing their
financial sustainability befote each contract is drawn up. The Insurance Committee of the Group assesses the
creditworthiness of all reinsurcrs and intermediaties by reviewing credit ratings provided by rating agencies and
other publicly available financial information. The Committee also receives details of the history of recent
payments and the status of any negotiations between the Group and these third parzies.

The Group monitors credit risk by setting limits on one counterparty or a group of counterparties, as well as
by setting limits on geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored regularly, with limits being
reviewed at least once a year. Limits of credit risk by category and tertitory are approved on a quarterly basis
by the Board of Directors. Credit risk management is carried out through regular analysis of the ability of
existing and potential bortowers to repay interest payments and principal amounts of debt, and, if necessary,
by changing credit limits. Credit risk management is also carried out by obraining collateral and guarantees of
companics and individuals.

The most significant credit risk is a decrease in the creditworthiness of the Group's investment pottfolio,
Maximum exposute to credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk can vary significantly, depending on the individual risks
inherent in specific assets and on general market fisks.

The [ollowitg table presents the maximum exposure to credic risk for financial assets. For financial assets
recorded on bakance sheet aceounts, the maximum exposute to credit tisk is the book value of these asscts not
including ulTsets of assets und liabilities and collateral,
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)
31 December 2016
Maximum Net exposure Collateral
Exposure Offset after offset pledged _N_Et expa§ure
Cash and cash equivalents 7 225149 - - 7225149 - 7225149
Peposits in banks 144 099 346 - 144 099 346 - 144 099 346
Financial assets at fair O
value
through profit or ioss 163 222 342 - 163 222 342 - © 163 222 342
Investments available -
for sale 38 563 324 - 38 563 324 - 38 563 324
Loans and recelvables 1632150 - 1632150 - 1632150
Insurance and reinsurance )
receivable 3 825 367 - 3 825 367 - 3 825 367
Other financial assets 6 589 261 - 6 589 261 - 6 589 261
31 December 2015
Maximum . Net exposure Collateral
Exposure Offset after ofset pledged Net exposure
Cash and cash equivaients 12 344 106 - 12 344 106 - 12 344 1086
Deposits in banks 117 924 648 - 117 924 648 - 117 924 648
Financial assets at fair
value 138 868 697 - 138 B6B 697 - 138 868 697
Investments available
for sale 34 125598 - 34 125 598 - 34 125 598
Loans and receivables 3 592 000 - 3592 000 - 3 592 000
Insurance and reinsurance
receivable 1976 153 - 1976 153 - 1976153
Other financial assets 2605940 - 2 805 940 - 2 605 940

Financial assets are classified based on current credit ratings assigned by internationally recognized rating
agencies. The highest possible rating is AAA. The investment level of financial assets corresponds to the
ratings from AAA ro BBB, assigned by international rating agencies. Financial assers with a rating lower than
BBB refer to the speculative level.

31 December
<AAA <BBB <CCC Not rated 2016
Total
Cash and cash equivalents 668 218 6 556 931 - - 7225149
Deposits in banks - 143 519 724 579622 - 144 099 346
Financial assets at fair value 163 292 342 i} i i} 163 222 342
through profitorloss
Investments available 38 563 374 38 563 324
for sale :
Loans and receivables - 800 000 - -~ 832 150 1632 150
Insura'nce and reinsurance A } } 3 825 367 3 825 367
receivable
Other financial assets a6 282 571179 - 2245 301 2912762
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27 RISBK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Cash and cash eguivalents
-Deposits in banks .
Financial assets at fair value
‘through profitor joss
Investments available
for sale -
Loans and receivables
Insurance and reinsurance
receivable
Cther financial assets

<AAA

2385774

134 657 858

346 994

'<BBB

9958 332
89318 598

4210 839

8 803 903
2 800 000

13 645

<cce

300000

Not rated

28 306 050
1407 539

25321695
792 000
1976 153
224530

31 December

2015
Total- :

12 344 106

117 924 648
© 138 868 697

34 125 598
3 592 000
1976153
2605940

The Group's credit tisk is mainly concentrated in the Republic of Uzbekistan and the United Kingdom. The
degree of credit risk is constantly monitored to ensure compliance with limits and creditworthiness in

accotdance with the Company's approved risk management policy.
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»

Geographical concentration

27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Management monitors risk associated with changes in legislation and assesses its impact on the Group's
operations. This approach allows the Group to minimize possible losses from changes in the investment
climate in the Republic of Uzbekistan.

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits in banks
Financial aszats at fair value
through profitor loss
investments available for sale
Leoans and receivables
Insurance and reinsurance
receivable
Other financial assets
TOTAL ANANMNCIAL
ASSETS

ANANCIAL LIABILITIES-

Insurance and reinsurance
payable

Other financiat liabilities

TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION

Non-OECD

Information on the geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is presented in the following tables:

Republic of \ 31 December
Uzbekistan countries OECD countries 2016
Total
5447 648 - 1777 501 7225148
115 999 546 28 092 800 - 144 099 346
- - 163 222 342 163 222 342
37178643 1384 681 - 38 563 324
1632150 - - 1632150
2946 908 - 878 458 3 825 367
6 492 279 - 96 282 6 589 261
169 697 875 29 484 481 165974 584 365 156 940
2464 382 555 466 3019 848
803 883 - 1 569 317 2473 200
3 368 265 - 2124782 5493 047
166 329 610 163 849 802

359 663 893

29 484 4231
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may
for obligations associated with financial instry
realize assets at their fajr value; or the nabil
eatlier than expeeted, the dme for payment

cxpecled,

The main liquidity risk facing the Group s the daily

of payments arising from insuragce contracts,

The Group manages liquidity risk throy
what is the liquidity risk; Establishes the minimum rz
Establishes contingency financing plans; Determines t
plan into action; Concentrates funding soutces; Reports on the ex

gh the Group

have difﬁculty in attracting funds needed to
ments. Liquidity risk may
ity of the counterparty
of insurance obligation

s; of inubiliey

supetvisory authotities; Monitors compliance with liquidity risk policies and reviews liquid;

policies for relevance and compliance with changes in the oper:

Republic of Non-OECD . 31 December
_ Uzbekistan countries OECD countries : 2_0’_l§
o ' : ' Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS: :
.. Cash and cash equivalents 9290113 - 3 053 992 12344 106
-Deposits in banks 89824 848 28 099 800 - 117 924 648
Financia! assets at fair valye o -
through profit or joss - - 138 868 697 138 868 697
Investments available for sale 32740517 1384 681 S - 34 125 508
Loans and receivables 3 592 000 - - 3 582 oop
Insurance and reinsg Urance
receivable 274 283 - 1701870 1976 153
- Other financial assets 1684 808 - Y21 134 2 605 940
TOTAL FINANCIAL
_ABSETS 137 4068 968 29 484 481 144 545 693 311437 143
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
insurance and reins urance
payable 8534715 416 006 8 950 721
Other financial liabilities 521 460 - 1951739 2473 200
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES 9056175 - 2367745 11423 921
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 128 350 793 29 484 481 142 177 948 300 013 222
Liquidity risk

meet all requirements
arise as a result of the inability to quickly
' pay off its wntractual vbligations; or
to generate cash flows gs

cash requirements for its available cash resources in fespect
G
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NATIONAL EXPORT-IMPORT INSURANCE COMPANY «UZBEKINVEST»
27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

The Group does not include insurance reserves in the liquidity analysis, inctuding amounts from reinsurers,
classified as reinsurance assets, since reserves do not have a certain maturity. In addition, actual liabilities may
differ from the reserve amounts and are not included in the table above.

Discounted liabilities presented in the previous tables coincide with the amounts of undiscounted obligations
due to the fact that all liabilities are short-termn,

Available-for-sale financial assers ate represented by matusity dates, although they are fairly liquid and can be
sold at fair value for three months if necessary.

Market risk

The company is also exposed to market tisks associated with the presence of open positions in interest rates
and currencies subject to general and specific market fluctuations. The Group manages martket risk by
peciodically cvaluaung puLunml losses us o result of pegative changes o the market enviromnent, and by
esrabiishing and maintainifg adequate limits on the amount of allowable losses and the requitements for the
rate of rerurn,

Currency risk

Currency risk is the fisk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates that affect its financial position and cash

flows,

Uzs usb EUR Other 31 December
usb1= EUR1 = 2016
3,231.48 UZS 3,419.23 UZS Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 4 426 021 2729452 3820 65 B56 7 225149
Deposits in banks 30674 912 113 028 698 395736 - 144 099 346
Financial assets atfair
value through profit or - 163 222 342 - - 163 222 342
loss
Investments available ) 28 563 324 _ _ 38 563 324
for sale
Loans and receivables 1632150 - - - 1632150
Insuralnce and reinsurance 2 940 268 8B5 099 ) ) 1 825 367
receivable
Other financial assets 6 589 261 - - - 6 589 261
TOTAL ANANCIAL
ASSETS 46 262 612 318 428 815 488 556 65 856 465 156 839
FINANCIAIL LIABILITIES:
Insurance and refnsurance 737 909 5 281 939 ) 5 3019848
payable
Other financial liabilities 10 170 675 43 230 13211 717 10 227 833
TOTAL ANANCIAL
LIABILITIES 10 908 684 2325 168 13 211 717 13 247 681
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 35354 028 316 103 747 386 345 65 139 351909 259
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation) '
uzs usb EUR Other 31 December
UsSb1= EUR1= 2015
2,809.98 UZS 3,07419 UZS Total
ANANCIAL. ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 57168635 6 569 142 2057 56 272 12 344 106
Deposits in banks 18 588 249 _ 98 967 496 368 803 - 117 924 648
Financial assets atfair ' ' '
value through profit or - 138 868 697 - - 138 868 697
loss o
Investments available 32 740 917 1384 681 . . 34 125 598
forsale
Loans and recsivables 3 592 0Ly - - 3 592 000
Insurance and reinsurance 274 283 1701 870 } ) 1976153
receivable
Other financial assets 1435 669 1170271 - - 2605940
TOTAL ANANCIAL 62 347 753 248 662 158 370 960 56 272 311 437 142
ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Insurance and reinsurance 3038 476 5912 209 25 ) 8 950 721
payable
Other financial liabilities 443 814 2029 386 - - 2 473 200
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES 3 482 290 7 941 595 36 - 11423 921
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 58 B65 463 240 720 563 370924 56 272 300013 222

Analysis of sensitivity to foreign exchange risk

The table below summarizes the sensitivity of the Group to 15% and 16% of the increase and decrease in the
sum to the US dollar and euro as of 31 December 2016 and 2015, 11% and 3.8%, respectively. The Group's
management believes thar, given the current economic situation in the Republic of Uzbekistan, it is possibie
for the sum to fluctuate against the US dollar and euro at a rate of up to 25%. This level of sensitivity 1s used
internally in the preparation of foreign exchange risk reports for key management personnel of the Company
and represents management's assessment of possible changes in exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes
only forcign currency amounts available at the end of the period, when converted at the end of the year, rates
that are changed by 25% are used as compated to those effective as of 31 December 2016 and 2015,

respectively.

As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 December 2015

+15% =15% +16% -16%

Impact on net profit and equity 47 415 562 (47 415 562) 38 515290 (38 515 290)

As at 31 Deceamber 2016 As at 31 December 2015

+11% -11% +3.8% -3.8%

Impact on net profit and equity 42 498 (42 498) 14 095 (14 095)
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables reflect the effect of a change in the main assumption, while other assumptions remain
unchanged. In fact, there is a connection between assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted thar
the sensitivity is nonlinear, so interpolation or extrapolation of the results should not be petformed.

The sensitivity analysis does not take into account that the Group actively manages assets and liabilities. In
addition to this, the financial position of the Company may vary depending on the changes taking place in the
matket. For example, the Group's strategy in the area of financial risk management is aimed at managing the
tisk of market volatility. In the event of sharp negative price fluctuations in the securities market, management
can resort to such methods as selling investments, changing the composition of the invesement portfolio, and
also to other methods of protection. Consequently, the change in assumptions may not have an impact on
liabilities and significantly affect the assets recorded on the balance sheet ut the tuarldet price. In this situation,
different methods of valuation of assets and liabilities can lead 1o significant fluctuations in the amount of
capital, :

Other limirations in the above sensitivity analysis include the use (with the aim of disclosing the potential risk)
of hypothetical market movements, which arc just the Company's orecast of forthcoming market changes that
can not be predicted with any degree of certainty. Also a limitation is the assumption thart all interest rates
change in an identical way.

28 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
The Company's management does not have information on significant events after the reporting date
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